
Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page  1

Governing Board Meeting
Monday, May 24, 2021



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 2

NOTICE OF MEETING

State of Emergency Special Public Notice

The regular meeting of the Governing Board of the Davidson Academy will be held starting at 2 p.m. on 
Monday, May 24, 2021.

Due to the current State of Emergency declared by the Governor because of the Covid-19 virus, and more 
specifically the Governor’s Directive 006, Section 1, this public meeting will be held via videoconference 
and there will be no physical location for the meeting. Members of the public wishing to observe the 
meeting may do so using the following link: https://davidsongifted.zoom.us/j/83735106603

Public comment for this meeting will be received via email only. Those wishing to make public comment 
should email their public comments to boardcomments@davidsonacademy.unr.edu. All public comments 
received before and during the meeting will be forwarded to the Governing Board of the Davidson Academy 
for their consideration. All public comments will be included in the public record as minutes but will not 
be read aloud during the meeting

AGENDA

2 p.m.

A. ROLL CALL*

B. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS*

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS* 
The public may comment on any subject that is not on the agenda that is pertinent to the 
Davidson Academy. Each speaker will be limited to three minutes. Public comment relating to 
an agenda item will be taken during discussion of that item. Comment will be limited to three 
minutes, but speaking time may be reduced at the discretion of the chair of the meeting, if there 
are a large number of speakers on a given subject. No comments will be restricted based upon 
viewpoint.

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Meeting of February 16, 2021 (for possible action) |Tab 1|

E. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (for possible action) 
The public is notified that the Governing Board may take items on the agenda out of order; 
combine two or more agenda items for consideration; remove an item from the agenda; or delay 
discussion relating to an item on the agenda

F. REPORTS*

1. ACADEMY DIRECTOR*       
a. General Program Updates      |Tab 2| |Tab 3|

b. College Planning Updates      |Tab 4| |Tab 5|

2. DIRECTOR OF ONLINE LEARNING*      
a. General Program Updates      |Tab 6|

3. MEDIA AND OUTREACH*       |Tab 7| 
 

https://davidsongifted.zoom.us/j/83735106603
mailto:boardcomments@davidsonacademy.unr.edu


Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 3

G. GENERAL BUSINESS (for possible action)

1. Review, discuss, and possibly approve engagement of auditors Holthouse Carlin & Van Trigt 
to conduct required annual audit of financials by independent third party. |Tab 8|

2. Review, discuss, and possibly approve budget for Fiscal Year 2021-2022, presented as a  
tentative budget at public budget hearing on May 10, 2021.   |Tab 9|

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS* 
The public may comment on any subject that is not on the agenda that is pertinent to the Davidson 
Academy. Each speaker will be limited to three minutes. Public comment relating to an agenda item will 
be taken during discussion of that item. Comment will be limited to three minutes, but speaking time may 
be reduced at the discretion of the chair of the meeting, if there are a large number of speakers on a given 
subject. No comments will be restricted based upon viewpoint.

I. ADJOURNMENT (for possible action) 
Upcoming Meeting Dates for 2021

• Monday, September 20, 2021

• Monday, November 8, 2021

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OF THIS AGENDA

I hereby certify that In accordance with NRS 241.020, on or before Wednesday, May 20, 2020, at 9:00 a.m., a copy of 
this agenda was delivered to the post office used by the Davidson Academy addressed to each person who has requested 
to receive copies of Davidson Academy Governing Board meeting agendas; a copy of this agenda was emailed to each 
person who agreed to receive copies of Davidson Academy Governing Board meeting agendas by electronic mail; 
and a copy has been posted online at Notice.NV.gov and at the Academy’s website (http://www.DavidsonAcademy.
UNR.edu/). Physical posting has been suspended in accordance with Nevada Executive Department, Declaration of 
Emergency, Directive 006 (section 3). 

/s/ Holly Lorge 
Governing Board Clerk 
Email: hlorge@davidsonacademy.unr.edu 
Phone: 775-682-5800 
 

Governing Board: Bob Davidson, Roger Davidson, Hon. Brian Krolicki, Mark Herron, Lauralyn Lovell McCarthy 
Sandoval, Richard Trachok, and Annette Whittemore; Ex-Officio: Dr. Kristen McNeill, Jhone Ebert, and Hon. Brian 
Sandoval

Note: The Governing Board may take items on the agenda out of order; combine two or more agenda items for  
consideration; remove an item from the agenda; or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda.

Those items followed by an asterisk (*) are items on the agenda upon which the Governing Board will take no action. 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested 
to call Colleen Harsin at 775-682-5800 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

Copies of the packets containing support material for this agenda are available at no charge on the Davidson 
Academy website at http://DavidsonAcademy.UNR/edu. Copies may also be obtained by sending a request via email to 
charsin@davidsonacademy.unr.edu or by contacting Aimee Fredericks by mail at Davidson Academy, 9665 Gateway 
Drive, Ste. B, Reno, NV 89521, or by telephone at 775-682-5800. 

 
 
Meeting agendas and minutes are available on the Academy’s website (http://www.DavidsonAcademy.UNR.edu/).

http://www.DavidsonAcademy.UNR.edu/
http://www.DavidsonAcademy.UNR.edu/
mailto:hlorge@davidsonacademy.unr.eduhttp://
http://DavidsonAcademy.UNR/edu
mailto:charsin@davidsonacademy.unr.edu
http://www.DavidsonAcademy.UNR.edu/


Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 4

UNAPPROVED

Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

Tab 2
Tab 3

Tab 4
Tab 5

Tab 6
Tab 7

Tab 8
Tab 9

Minutes of the Meeting
The Davidson Academy Governing Board

February 16, 2021
 
These minutes are not yet approved and are subject to revision at the next meeting of the Governing 
Board.

CALL TO ORDER

The regular meeting of the Governing Board was called to order at 2:03 p.m. Due to the current State of 
Emergency declared by the Governor because of the COVID-19 virus, and more specifically the Governor’s 
Directive 006, Section 1, this public meeting was held via videoconference with no physical meeting 
location.

A. ROLL CALL

Roll call was completed by the chair of the meeting, Mark Herron. Bob Davidson, Roger Davidson, Mark 
Herron, Richard Trachok, Brian Krolicki, and Brian Sandoval were present. Also present, were Academy 
Director, Colleen Harsin, Director of Online Learning, Stacy Hawthorne, Legal Counsel, Ann Alexander, 
Controller, Karin Dixson, Director of Human Resources, Dee Carey and Clerk of the Board, Holly Lorge’. 
Jhone Ebert, Lauralyn McCarthy-Sandoval, Annette Whittemore and Kristen McNeill were not present. 
Following completion of roll call, a quorum was confirmed.

B. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

Mark Herron welcomed Board members and members of the public in attendance. Colleen Harsin 
welcomed Academy parents who were joining us, as well as Matt Means, Dean of the University of Nevada, 
Reno Honors College and the new Davidson Group Director of Human Resources, Dee Carey.

C. PUBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Herron provided instructions concerning public comment as stated under item C. of the meeting 
agenda.

Mr. Herron also read the State of Emergency information, provided the link from agenda and confirmed 
that public comments, if made, would be received by email.

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mr. Herron requested a motion for approval of the agenda. Motion was made and seconded for approval of 
the meeting agenda. Motion carried unanimously.

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mark Herron requested approval of the minutes for the meeting of November 9, 2020, under TAB 1 of 
the Board Book. Motion was made and seconded for approval of the minutes as submitted. There was no 
discussion and the motion carried unanimously.

F. REPORTS

1. Academy Director 
a. General Program Updates

Davidson Academy Director, Colleen Harsin, began her report by directing Board members to TAB 2 of the 
Board Book and sharing that the Academy currently has 115 applications in progress for the Reno campus, 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 5

UNAPPROVED

Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 5 Tab 1
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9
with a final deadline of March 31st. Sixteen applicants have been assessed and of those, seven have been 
accepted, including five local students, as well as one from southern Nevada, and one from Washington. 
The most recent curriculum based assessment, completed in January included applicants from a broader 
range of states and locations. Ms. Harsin shared that the applications tend to increase over the course of 
the application period, so the numbers tend to be fairly low in the fall and increase in the spring. However, 
application numbers were acknowledged as being lower than in the past. Ms. Harsin reported that the 
Reno campus will have its largest graduating class in 2021, and also likely its smallest incoming new 
student enrollment in 2021. Online outreach is continuing, and the Academy is aware of the circumstances 
complicating the ability of families to move during this time.

Ms. Harsin continued her report with TAB 2 of the Board Book for a summary of student in-person 
attendance at the Academy. She brought the Board’s attention to the state requirements in providing 
high-quality remote learning for the entire school year, while also offering a version of hybrid learning 
in the building at the Reno campus. Ms. Harsin noted that in the ten weeks since the November Board 
meeting, there is still low in-person attendance, fewer than 10 students per day, although there has been 
a slight increase since spring semester has started. The Reno campus teachers are primarily teaching 
remotely via Zoom. Students who are attending in-person are engaged via Zoom for their classes. They 
typically choose to come into the Academy campus for a change of scenery and to engage socially with 
other students also attending in-person. The continuing plan is to reach out to the Academy community 
for feedback from parents, students and staff on reaching the goal of returning to the building for the next 
school year.

Ms. Harsin continued with an update on reports in progress. There was a Reno campus mid-year parent 
survey in February, with 41 parents completing the survey as of this meeting. Ms. Harsin will have more 
information and additional survey completion updates by parents for the next Board meeting scheduled 
for May 24, 2021. Ms. Harsin also shared the status of the Nevada Department of Education Dual Credit 
Data Request for the 2020-2021 school year. Approximately one-third of the Reno campus students are 
taking University classes for dual enrollment at any given time. Ms. Harsin will give an update on this 
subject at the next Board meeting.

Also included in TAB 2 was the NRS.388C.120(5) report, due March 1, 2021. This report is due every odd-
numbered year. Ms. Harsin and Dr. Hawthorne are in the process of working to revamp this format which 
goes to the Legislative Counsel Bureau and Department of Education, as well as UNR President, Brian 
Sandoval. In addition, the annual application to operate an alternative schedule will be submitted this 
spring. Copies of these submitted documents will be provided at the next Board meeting.

Ms. Harsin discussed the accreditation engagement review for the 2023-2024 school year. The Academy is 
currently waiting for further instruction as to the upcoming review process. Ms. Harsin reached out to the 
Cognia Standards and Protocol’s Senior Director for Accreditation Services for an update and timeline, and 
she was told Cognia is working on completing certain elements and we will be contacted when the final 
materials are available.

Ms. Harsin shared student awards and recognition, including Reno campus student, Annabelle Choi, who 
received the Silver Key and Golden Key Award and is also an American Visions nominee, whose work is 
being displayed at the Nevada Museum of Art.

Every year the College Board National Recognition Program (CBRP) Scholars provides National Recognition 
of Scholars. This year, Ikenna Okpukpara is being recognized for the National African American Recognition 
Program and Asher Hansen for the National Hispanic Recognition Program. Both students attend the Reno 
campus.

Ms. Harsin’s discussion continued under TAB 2 with congratulations to the 2021 National Merit Scholarship 
Program Finalists; all eligible semi-finalists from the Academy advanced. The list of Finalists includes one 
student from the Online campus. Ms. Harsin continued with the announcement of 21 U.S. Presidential 
Scholar nominees, which includes two of the Online campus students – one of whom lives in Pennsylvania 
and one who lives in southern Nevada; the rest are Reno campus students.



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 6

UNAPPROVED

BoardBook page 6 Tab 1

Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

Tab 2
Tab 3

Tab 4
Tab 5

Tab 6
Tab 7

Tab 8
Tab 9

As of February 8, 2021, the college counseling staff confirmed that 39 graduating Academy students have 
submitted 494 applications which is the largest number of applications ever submitted by and Academy 
graduating class. Ms. Harsin added that many students are turning in more applications than they 
normally would, in response due to the higher deferral rate of applications this year. Continuing with 
the college counseling report Ms. Harsin indicated that Academy students have applied to 143 different 
colleges. Thus far, 85 have been accepted, 26 have been deferred and 13 have received denials. Many 
schools are still in play, and there will be more to share at the next Board meeting.

2. Director of Online Learning 
a. General Program Updates

Director of Online Learning, Stacy Hawthorne began her report and referred Board Members to TAB 3 
of their Board Books to give an applications update. Dr. Hawthorne commented that online learning is 
gaining more widespread acceptance and our application numbers reflect that as seen in the graph on 
page 15. Applications are up again for the fourth consecutive year, with the graph reflecting total count 
through the end of February for each year since 2017. While the chart showed 199 applications, there are 
actually 289 applications when the extended applications from summer are included.

Dr. Hawthorne continued that the Online campus has completed eight assessment cycles, with a total 
of 88 applicants assessed currently this year. Nineteen applicants have been fully accepted and 25 are 
awaiting decisions. Assessments are being administered every two weeks to keep up with the flow of 
applications, with more being added in March. The goal is to finish assessments by the end of May so that 
families can make decisions in a timely manner and be ready by start of school in August.

Richard Trachok asked Dr. Hawthorne if those 88 assessed students are awaiting a decision “from us, or 
we from them?”

Dr. Hawthorne replied that 88 have been through the assessment cycle, 25 are waiting a decision from 
the Online campus, which means 53 have already gotten their decision, and of those 53, 19 were accepted. 
Dr. Hawthorne added that the normal acceptance rate hovers around 50%, but with extended applications 
from summer 2020 applications, different test scores were allowed to be submitted because testing was a 
problem due to Covid-19 restrictions. Dr. Hawthorne added that as long as there a test score somewhere 
in the application that showed a qualifying score, applicants were invited to assessment. This allowed 
applicants who do not meet posted testing requirements to be invited to assessment. Unfortunately, this 
led to a lower acceptance rate. However, this does help validate posted qualification criteria. Dr. Hawthorne 
also stated that typically applicants under the age of twelve are required to submit achievement testing, 
not IQ testing to show performance in each of the subjects. Last year an IQ or achievement score may 
have qualified and the acceptance rate went down as they weren’t able to show goodness-of-fit on our 
curriculum-based assessment. Dr. Hawthorne shared the acceptance rate is now back to 50% due to 
getting through those summer assessments.

Brian Krolicki inquired about the number of online students the Online campus is comfortable accepting, 
acknowledging that the admission process is still ongoing, and not all have been assessed yet, but what is 
that comfortable number?

Dr. Hawthorne responded by saying the goal is 70 new students this year. She explained that number is 
close to double what was added this year, and that this year started with 79 new students. Dr. Hawthorne 
explained that more Zoom rooms can be added with hiring more teachers, but maintaining quality is 
difficult the faster the growth. The target number of total students for 2021-22 is 100 to 125 students, but 
could be as many as 140 students.

Dr. Hawthorne explained that there is a lot that happens once a new staff member is hired, adding that 
in regards to professional development, there are three important items: 1. expertise in content area; 2. 
disposition and experience with profoundly gifted students; and 3. technology skills. If the newly hired 
teacher has items 1 and 2, then item 3 can be something trained. Newly hired teachers start professional 
development on July 1 with a 7-week hands-on introduction to online learning the Academy way, 
policies, school culture, and technology. Mini-training workshops are offered throughout the year for all 
instructors.



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 7

UNAPPROVED

BoardBook page 7 Tab 1

Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

Tab 2
Tab 3

Tab 4
Tab 5

Tab 6
Tab 7

Tab 8
Tab 9

Dr. Hawthorne continued with TAB 3 to share with the Board the Professional Growth report, and the 
award being applied for in this program. Each semester, students are asked to rate the courses in three 
areas – course content in Blackboard, live sessions, and the instructor. The questions and composite for 
each area scores are shown in detail on pages 16 and 17 in the Board Book. The composite scores for all 
categories have increased over the last three years, and any score over a 3, with scoring being 0 to 4, 
shows the quality of the program and how it is growing.

Dr. Hawthorne shared that this year an ‘Accepted Families Night’ was created to help new families 
and students have questions answered. This event has helped new families understand more about the 
Academy’s courses, credits and processes before they enroll. This will also allow the counselors and 
advisors to dedicate more time during personalized learning plan meetings in the spring to get to know 
the students since these basic questions have already been addressed. The family nights are one hour long 
via Zoom and in a small group format. The format allows each of the staff members to talk about their area 
of responsibility and for parents to ask questions, meet each other online and see who was also accepted. 
This event was positively received, and a second ‘Accepted Families Night’ is scheduled later this month.

Dr. Hawthorne highlighted Online student Lucia M. for her progression to the national level of Cyberstart 
America Competition. This is the first year, first level for this new DAO course called “Cyber Society.” This 
is a free national program for high school students to master cybersecurity, increase their digital skills and 
compete for college scholarships. The Academy is very excited that Lucia M. has made it to the national 
level in this competition. There were also additional students Dr. Hawthorne mentioned in grades seven 
to twelve (age thirteen and up) that won Scholastic Art & Writing Awards.

3. Media and Outreach

Dr. Hawthorne provided the Board with a report of the Academy’s recent media and outreach efforts 
summarized under TAB 4 of the Board Book. Dr. Hawthorne pointed out the Academy students are 
continuing to do well in Science Olympiad, with student Annabelle W. being named a Top 25 finisher 
and Julia S. created an award-winning volunteer-matching app. The Online campus was featured and 
recognized in Education Week, a news source focusing on educational issues, as an online school that has 
systems and practices in place to mitigate any potential technology issues. Dr. Hawthorne also shared that 
student Derek C. was named a top 300 scholar in Regeneron’s Science Talent Search. Both Derek and the 
Academy will receive $2,000 to be used toward STEM-related activities.

Dr. Hawthorne reported that total website visits are up 31% year over year. The Academy is now in the 
top three rankings for key words that include or mention: online classes for gifted children, online gifted 
middle school, online gifted programs, online gifted education and online programs for gifted students. 
Dr. Hawthorne discussed the Academy’s ‘keyword rankings’ on page 23 which showed the full list of key 
word rankings and moving up/growth in those positions.

Dr. Hawthorne concluded her report discussing the outreach of the Online campus via virtual open houses. 
There have been three Online campus and two Reno campus virtual open houses with one more to come in 
March. Dr. Hawthorne added that the e-Newsletter reaches 6,000 people every other month, and Academy 
information can also be found on Instagram, Facebook and YouTube.

G. GENERAL BUSINESS

Mr. Herron referred Board members to TAB 5 of their Board Books to discuss a proposed resolution revising 
a current policy requiring multiple signatures on Academy checks for amounts in excess of $10,000. Mr. 
Herron stated this policy was adopted by the Board at the first Board meeting 15 years ago. Mr. Herron ask 
the Board to consider removing this item for two reasons: the Academy’s internal controls have evolved 
since 2006, and they are now subject to an annual audit, which covers the internal controls. Mr. Herron 
added that being in a ‘virtual world’ and working remotely, getting two signatures on checks has proven 
to be difficult in a timely manner to get vendors paid when due. There are currently two levels of approval 
for all purchases over a nominal amount, there is an accounts payable process that requires documentation 
and signed off by at least two individuals or more before moving next to the accounting function, and in 
that step payable requests are matched for approval. Mr. Herron continued it was then sent to a check 
generation process and signature process that is electronic to create physical checks within an electronic  
 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 8

UNAPPROVED

BoardBook page 8 Tab 1

Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

Tab 2
Tab 3

Tab 4
Tab 5

Tab 6
Tab 7

Tab 8
Tab 9

platform. Those checks are printed at three dedicated printers at three office locations, so no person can 
print a check at random. Mr. Herron stated that he and Colleen Harsin are the only authorized signatories.

Richard Trachok asked two questions of Mr. Herron: “How many checks are written per month, actual 
physical checks,” and “Are you proposing to remove the policy entirely or to increase the amount?” 
Mr. Herron stated checks are processed once a week, approximately 10 to 20 checks, which can vary. 
For example, the Academy reimburses tuition that students pay, and at that time of year there can be a 
sizeable number of checks to be processed. Mr. Herron also confirmed his request to remove the limit. Mr. 
Herron added that another way vendors are paid is through wire transfers, and that does not require two 
sign-offs, those processes tend to merge and Mr. Herron would like to make them similar.

Brian Krolicki asked Mr. Herron from a governance standpoint for the accounts payable on a weekly basis, 
who reviews them after the fact. Mr. Herron confirmed reconciliation is done by an independent party, 
independent of Karin Dixson. Ms. Dixson reviews, and then Mr. Herron also reviews.

Brian Krolicki stated this is perfectly common, safeguards are in place in this technology world accentuated 
by Covid-19. Mr. Krolicki made a motion to approve removing the requirement for the double signatory. 
The motion was seconded.

Mr. Herron invited further discussion. There was no further discussion, and the motion carried 
unanimously.

Ms. Harsin referred Board Members to TAB 6 showing a list of Davidson Academy Reno campus 
students who have made satisfactory progress toward graduation, meeting and/or exceeding graduation 
requirements. Ms. Harsin added that if for some reason a student does not meet the requirement, even if 
approved by the Board today, that student will not graduate.

Ms. Harsin asked for a motion of approval for this list of 2021 graduates. The motion was made, seconded, 
and carried unanimously.

Brian Krolicki asked the Board to compliment to Ms. Harsin and Dr. Hawthorne and all the teachers and 
staff of both Academies, as well as the National Merit Finalist students, the nearly two dozen Presidential 
Scholarship finalists, and for the Board to acknowledge the positive response and growth rates for the 
Online campus. Mr. Krolicki commented this was a spectacular performance within the challenges of 
this last year, and wanted to acknowledge the extraordinary achievements of the students as they are 
mentored by the Academy’s staff and teachers. Ms. Harsin agreed, and stated how fortunate it is to work 
with such a great team.

Mr. Herron mentioned to the Board there is a Public Budget meeting on May 10, and that Board members 
are not expected to participate in that meeting. Mr. Herron also reminded the Board of upcoming Board 
meeting dates of May 24, September 20 and November 8, requiring their attendance.

H. PUBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Herron reminded everyone of the process for public comment. No comments were received.

I. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board in public meeting, Mr. Herron asked for a 
motion to adjourn. Motion was made, seconded and carried unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 2:48 
p.m.

Respectfully submitted by Holly Lorge’, Clerk of the Board



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 9

Academy Director
The Davidson Academy Governing Board Updates

May 24, 2021
 

 APPLICATION & ASSESSMENT

As of 5/18/2021, and the close of our application review cycle for the 2021-2022 school year, we reviewed a 
total of 90 completed applications for the Reno campus. Forty-three of these applicants were accepted for 
admission following successful completion of our curriculum based assessment. Additional demographic 
information of students accepted by the Reno campus for the 2021-2022 school year includes:

• 26 in-state students

 › 23 Reno

 › 1 Gardnerville

 › 1 Incline Village

 › 1 Stateline

• 17 out-of-state students from 11 states (California, Florida, Illinois, Indiana, Missouri, Oklahoma, 
New York, North Carolina, Texas, Virginia, Washington)

• 19 female; 24 male

IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE

In the eleven weeks since the previous Governing Board meeting, an average of fourteen students indicated 
interest in attending the Academy in-person, doubling the average reported for the previous ten weeks. 
Between nine and twenty-nine (Senior Day) completed the weekly sign-up form in the past eleven weeks, 
with the fewest number of students signing up for the week of Presidents Day and the week prior to 
Spring Break. There was a steady increase in in-person attendance during the last five full weeks of 
school, with a decrease during the last two days of finals. Ninety-nine students signed up to attend the 
last day of school festivities held at Rancho San Rafael Regional Park. 

2020-2021 STATE STANDARDIZED TESTING

In accordance with state and federal standardized testing requirements, the Academy administered The 
Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium (SBAC) tests for 6th-8th graders and the High School Science 
Exam for eligible 9th and 10th graders this spring. Eligible students were invited to campus for both 
computer-based exams. All COVID-19 Requirements in the handbook were in place during the state test 
administrations including completing the a COVID-19 Daily Home Screening Form in the morning prior 
to arrival, six feet of distance, and required face coverings.  Several students did not participate in state 
testing this year due to concerns related to COVID-19.

State Testing Participation Totals

Test Total # Students Eligible # of participants # of non-participants

6th grade SBAC 8 8 0

7th grade SBAC 17 7 10

8th grade SBAC 20 15 5

8th grade Science 20 15 5

High School Science 26 20 6



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 10

MID-YEAR PARENT SURVEY (2/16/21) – RENO CAMPUS

Q1: What about the Academy has worked well for your student and your family so far this year?

Because online learning is difficult for Student in general, I believe having live classes with teachers 
has been vital to their success. Also having work days away from the virtual classroom has been 
significant.

My student really enjoyed the summer classes (health classes). This year’s school session has been 
great too.

The ability to have a comprehensive and efficient distance learning program.

The DA’s deep bench strength with online learning platform has been instrumental during this 
pandemic. Our children thrived at the DA compared to their past experience both online or 
otherwise at their previous institutions. The DA’s smaller classroom size, dedicated teachers, and 
selective admission policy has also contributed to the unique learning experience.

The remote option has been great for us and the fact that the teachers have done their best to keep 
classes as “normal” as possible is much appreciated.

The consistency. Not being in person some of the time and not others. It’s been difficult online, but 
at so grateful that it’s has been consistent.

Fantastic work delivering a DA education online! The live Zoom classes are the next best thing to  
in-person learning and have worked very well for the kids.

Everything! Our student has been thoroughly enjoying their classes, teachers, and peers. Even with 
schooling online from home, our student is engaged, challenged, motivated, and happy. THANK 
YOU!

Great

This is a challenging year. One of the things that worked really well to quell anxiety was knowing 
that if the computer caught fire in the middle of finals (it did), or the Wi-Fi went down (it did), 
or if the power went out (it did), or if we were evacuated for a fire (we weren’t, but almost) that 
our student could always ask for an extension on projects and homework, or utilize the extra 24 
hours they had to turn in assignments. This was truly amazing. 

Additionally, we are thankful for all the hard work the teachers have put into making the classes 
engaging and fun. Student frequently finishes their day with a huge smile, eager to tell us 
something silly or fun that happened that day. 

While nothing is perfect, we feel so grateful for the amazing job you all have done to make this year 
a good one.

Everything went well until Mathcounts.

Everything! We are very happy with the teachers, the quality of the classes, their format and online 
delivery.

Flexibility and understanding from staff

Online learning has been seamless, good communicatio

Student loves the Academy. They enjoy their classes and other activities during the day.

The Academy’s ability to keep students engaged online.

Very thorough communication and proactive correspondence for academic advisor meetings



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 11

Our student has really acclimated to their new school environment and taken on to how Davidson 
Academy teaches. They are loving school and trying hard to keep up. They are constantly sharing 
what they are learning and they are very comfortable in their class and among the peers that they 
have befriended.

That they were never required to go in-person. It was also helpful for them to take an Incomplete 
and have time over break to finish up.

organized teachers and zoom classroom

Flexibility and help in changing school schedule to help student adjust to being online.

This has been a major transition year for us since we moved here for high school. We decided to 
come to Reno rather than opt for the DAO because we need our student to be, ultimately, in 
person. It’s also been a gift (or a distraction, or both) to experience a new place in the midst of 
all the chaos of the year. It was interesting to arrive in Reno right when the local campaign signs 
were going up, to be in the thick of this California exodus that is so much in the news, and to 
smell the pine and have these gorgeous walking trails everywhere (I’m pretty sure Reno-ans 
think it’s completely normal to have these!?!!). Oh, and it’s not hot here, so that’s working well 
for all of us this year... Our family is much more active as Nevadans and we are outside a lot more 
than we were in our previous home state even though school is virtual. 

That’s my high level view of what’s worked well, but it has a lot to do with what has worked well on 
a more granular level. (1) Independent PE has been a huge positive for us, and we are able to use 
it to get our student out on the trails and out of the house. (2) The decision you made to have the 
school day schedule mirror what the students would have in person has worked well for us, also, 
giving us a solid routine. (3) Ongoing extracurriculars have made it easier for our student to have 
more casual, but purposeful, interactions with other students. In particular, they really, really, 
really enjoyed Ethics Bowl so I have my fingers crossed that Ethics Bowl continues... (4) It’s been 
good that our student wants to meet with their counselor semi-regularly. That’s new for us... 
(5) Today was picture day in the building. Our student looked forward to that five minutes in the 
building for WEEKS (I wish I could get them to do a day or two in the building). 

Dedication of the teachers in putting together a rigorous curriculum!

Under the circumstances and while still not ideal, the remote classes have worked well thanks to 
the outstanding DA teachers. Laurie, also, has been a wonderful college advisor/counselor for 
Student. We appreciate the teachers/staff very much.

We have appreciated the DA’s conscientious approach to schooling during the pandemic, 
especially the commitment to online schooling and the quality of that schooling; despite the 
trying circumstances, Student has learned a great deal during this school year. The increased 
opportunities for students to take breaks from the computer during the school day has also 
helped Student.

Being able to stay remote with same work load and expectations. We are pleased with the level of 
engagement the teachers have with our student and their response time to questions/concerns. 
Great job!

It has been great not to waste hours of our day in the car commuting. I can also say that some 
students can learn reasonably well in an online environment and others need more stimulation 
than is offered via that learning environment.

Remote learning via Zoom has been terrific for Student! Teachers are very accessible.

I am glad the transition to online went smoothly.

All the online classes retain the same rigors as in person.

We have been very satisfied with the online learning platform. 

Supportive administration and teacher; strong academics.



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 12

Continuity of learning experience through wildfires and snow storms! DA was always on, it seemed. 
Other children in WCSD distance learning experienced multiple interruptions to match in-person 
learning on/off/delay days.

So far so good. Everything has worked well so far. You and the awesome DA staff did a great job 
transitioning the classes to online remote learning. Thank you for giving them a few minutes 
between classes for breaks.

We greatly appreciate the flexibility and options with distance learning, as well as the continued 
communications from DA staff (about school and items of extracurricular interest) during these 
pandemic times. Thank you!

Overall the teachers have done a great job keeping the curriculum consistent with what students 
would receive in the building.

Student is so happy at the DA and we feel the online schooling has been very strong. It will be so 
much nicer when they are back in brick & mortar school, but it is a testament to the DA teachers 
and staff that this year is going so well in an online forum, especially for those of us who are 
first year families. Student loves having a peer group of bright kids all happy to be at school, 
teachers who care about their learning and happiness, and finds the topics covered in the classes 
interesting. Student feels challenged and happily sits down to do their homework because it is 
interesting and they can see its value.

Keeping the kids on a busy schedule and the same routine as they had when school was present has 
been a plus for our family

1. High quality of education is maintained.
2. The monthly parent meetings with Colleen and Scooby provide a more personal connection with 

the school community. 
3. The weekly dispatch is very much appreciated. 
4. College Night presentation was very informative.

I appreciate that you have chosen to keep the community healthy and safe above all else and that 
this has been a choice that has remained consistent throughout the school year. I am super 
grateful that the health of the school teachers/staff was top priority at this school and that they 
were never asked to come in for the entire year. We have enjoyed the DA community, even in its 
limited form. Ashley Ingle has been a superb writing teacher. I am always amazed at the amount 
of time she spends giving writing feedback and I hear there are often good discussions in the 
class. Spanish class has also worked well in the current online format.

Supportive and accessible teachers and staff, strong curriculum, good attempts by teachers and 
student groups at student engagement.

The communication and support.

Q2: What would you like to see different during the remainder of the current school year (keeping in 
mind that we currently remain bound to social distancing and mask-wearing protocols)?

I don’t see anything that could be safely done differently at this time. We hope that Student is able - 
and comfortable - attending in person at least one more time before graduating.

We continue to deal with a very dangerous environment. I don’t believe that we are safe until all 
teachers AND students are vaccinated. No member of the DA community should be reduced to just 
data point or statistic therefore I think that re-opening the DA to only in person instruction by 
following “this curve” and “that curve” is simply playing with fire. I would like for our children 
to have a choice to continue online even if the DA is open for in person class.

I know it’s hard, but any attempts to bring kids together for social connection/gathering is very 
much appreciated right now. The isolation that I know so many of our kids are feeling is a top 
concern of mine as these kids struggle to connect even in normal times.



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 13

I’m happy with how it is going as long as we are online. Of course, I hope to be back in person.

When the weather improves, outdoor classes or meetings might be nice. The outdoor labs Mr. Braik 
ran were great.

We are happy with how things are given the situation.

My student enjoys the online school now.

Nothing much really. I think the teachers are great, the homework level is reasonable, and the 
external support is just right.

Team competition selection more open and transparent. Parents not involved in decision making 
when conflict of interest exists.

I don’t have any suggestions.

(Assuming this will happen at least to some degree, but once information is available and as/once 
decisions are made:) Clear communication regarding what “returning to regular” next year will 
entail - vaccine requirements, which mitigation policies will continue and what criteria will be 
used to phase them out, will there be a period of hybrid online/in-person and what will that look 
like if so, etc.

I’d love for student to meet their classmates in person and make friends outside remote learning.

I’m happy with how it is going as long as we are online. Of course, I hope to be back in person.

To have more in person senior events (with safe protocols)

When the time comes, opportunities for students to safely interact in person.

Nothing from the school right now but I really wish the pandemic would be over already so that the 
students can all attend school in-person and really enjoy the real Davidson Academy dynamic.

That attending class at 8 not be required on work days. Just being in Zoom is draining for Student 
and it is almost more draining when there isn’t content only work that they do better at other 
times of the day anyhow.

something special for the seniors

It would be lovely if some of the classes could hold one in-person session or activity outside, with 
masks, before the end of the school year. This might allow students to connect more before 
summer break, especially to connect with the new students.

The one thing we have struggled with is meeting other students in person. We’ve met lots of parents 
and their students, but it’s the student driven interactions of meeting people they want to meet 
that is hard. I hope that makes sense? To put a fine point on it, the ONLY DA students whom 
our student has met in person are children of DA parents whom we as parents have found and 
interacted with. Our student has never met in person any students in their own clubs or classes.

For example, our student loves their World Affairs Club experience but has not met anyone in 
person. I wish it were possible for some of these smaller clubs to have the chance to meet in 
person--outdoors--even if it’s just once a month until the end of the year. It might help to 
reduce some burgeoning anxiety about returning to school in the Fall if our student could actually 
meet some of their “friends” in person. I’m trying to say that getting that anxiety of meeting 
someone for the first time out of the way this year would potentially make the start of next 
year much smoother. In this regard, our student is reluctant to meet people “on their own” 
-- perhaps it is a mix of pandemic- and social-anxiety and that many students already know 
each other. So if there could be more “officially sanctioned by the school” social opportunities in 
connection with classes and clubs, that would be a big help. Our student won’t go to a “Student 
Council meet-up in the park,” for example, but they would do it one of their clubs or classes was 
officially meeting there.



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 14

It is unfortunate that there have been no community Zoom meetings to help with morale. It has 
been a very sad senior year and a sad way to end our time at the DA. I really wish there was a way 
to help make the seniors feel a bit more celebrated.

I would like to see more classes meeting in person outdoors. I assume that not all students would 
participate, so there would have to be a mechanism for including students who could not be 
there. (Obviously this would also depend on the teacher being there, and it would be completely 
understandable if some teachers were unwilling to do that.) For Student, going to school indoors 
in person with a very small number of students, which meant that they were sometimes the only 
person actually present in a classroom, was not appealing. I think classes outdoors could provide 
more substantive in-person interactions for them and other students.

I would love to see some in-person schooling happening, with teachers teaching in their rooms both 
remotely and for in-person students. There are schools in Reno doing this with success that do 
not have all the resources and technology that the DA has at their disposal. This is a way to keep 
the student numbers low enough to accommodate the required spacing while also giving students 
some face-to-face time with their teachers.

Keep the remote classrooms as is! Great job!

Active participation in class can be difficult for online learning. I would like to see teachers can 
somehow enforce student participation especially for my younger student who tends to be quiet 
and is easily overlooked when the zoom window can only display a limited students.

More interaction with other students.

Nothing to add here. We are fairly satisfied. The only item I would mention is teachers talk about 
the importance of getting a break from screen during class but then give reading assignments on 
screen. English / history classes in particular would be nice if they handed out more packets or 
books for them to read. Easier on the eyes

More outdoor in person activities for individual classes. Student really enjoyed seeing their 
classmates and teacher for the first time during the trench warfare reenactment. They also said 
the activity was fun! Thank you -- we know that takes lots of time to plan and execute.

Concentration/focus/staying on task have been ongoing challenges. It would be wonderful to disable 
Teams during class so all conversations are through Zoom, directed to everyone in class. A long 
shot, I know.

Would love more socially distanced activities where possible, maybe outdoors on campus. Our 
children are needing the social interactions so desperately beyond the Zoom tiles. If staff are 
vaccinated, our family is OK with our child back on campus with mask and safety precautions. 
Wondering if we might adopt the middle/high school model with half students on, half students 
off each day, but something with more in-person opportunities which is a big part of their 
overall learning experience.

Can’t think of any thing.

I can’t think of anything now, but I do appreciate the DA adhering to safety standards and keeping 
us abreast of pandemic-related developments that affect the DA and its students.

I would like students to have an in-person learning option that doesn’t require them to be on Zoom. 
My child is struggling emotionally right now and they get too distracted being on their computer 
during class. It would be nice for teachers to use a setup where some students could attend in 
person without Zoom and those working from home could login to Zoom for the same class. I’ve 
been in meetings that worked well this way.

I have been scaffolding Student by weekly checking their calendar with them after they have input 
their assignments for the following two weeks to ensure they know what is due and by when. 
It would help if: (a) all teachers used the same system to show assignments and tests; (b) all 
teachers showed multiple weeks in advance so students can learn to long term plan better (c) all 
teachers have due times at the same time ie the beginning of class (d) all teachers used the same 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 15

system to turn things in ie BlackBoard or Turnitin. I feel the weekly schedule deciphering creates 
an unnecessary obstacle for students. Some teachers’ systems are clear and easy to use, some are 
very confusing, but my point is to have them all use a consistent system so the students all know 
what is due and when. *I am going to mark “yes” on the following question because I tried to 
keep my points brief and am happy to elaborate. That being said, if you do not feel it would be 
helpful to the school please don’t think I need/expect a call concerning this.

I think some kids are having trouble with some classes being online and are looking for tutoring 
outside the school since it is being difficult getting extra help from teachers or TAs, so probably 
teachers can try to give a one on one meetings so help when kids ask for help or if they see that 
kids are not doing very well.

More zoom meetings with counselors and other DA staff to maintain direct and personal 
connections.

Flipped classrooms depend on the students hearing the teacher help other students in class and 
students helping each other at times. For some reason it’s harder to ask for help when it’s needed 
and it’s also harder to stay engaged with an online meeting when there’s not much going on. I 
would prefer that the pre-recorded lessons were on some platform besides YouTube. I realize that 
it’s easy to work in YouTube, but with the current all online school setup, it’s even harder to keep 
my student on track if he has to go to YouTube for his lessons. 

Opportunities for in-person celebrations and/or academic endeavors that adhere to protocols. Our 
household is hoping for an in-person graduation of some sort in particular.

We are satisfied on how the year is going.

Q3: Would you like to schedule a time to discuss any questions or concerns?

Q4: Please add any additional comments you wish to share at this time.

As always, we are extremely grateful for the DA staff and their continuous support of their students.

Overall, the DA is doing a fantastic job. The students are temporarily online but they are picking 
up invaluable skills since remote learning and being part of a remote workforce are already 
happening before the pandemic. The pandemic simply accelerated their adoption. Thank you for 
keeping everyone safe.

Thank you for being a constant in this tumultuous time. I hope you are healthy and well.

I think you guys have done a tremendous job being flexible to this tough situation.



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 16

Thank you for making the best out of a very bad situation. I feel like the kids are still learning as 
much as ever. Some (my kids and others) thought homework and/or test lengths increased this 
year (esp math) due to the teachers not being as close to the student heartbeat. I haven’t heard of 
any frustration recently, so perhaps that has settled down.

Our family would like to thank all the staff and teachers at the Davidson Academy. You all are doing 
an excellent job - keep it up!

Given the circumstances of living through a pandemic, we couldn’t be happier. We are so thankful 
for all the hard work both the staff and teachers have put in to make this year the best it could 
be. Moving across the country was fraught with anxiety, but we all are so happy we’re here.

I think it would be beneficial if the school did something just before or after spring break to 
recognize the 1-year mark. Not celebrating it exactly, but recognizing that it’s been a really tough 
year for everyone and they’ve persevered and made it this far, to where the light at the end of the 
tunnel is visible.

I think you guys have done a tremendous job being flexible to this tough situation.

The seniors this year got lost in the system. Last year when COVID hit, everyone was trying to 
accommodate and help the seniors end their year on a special note. The class of 2021 has been 
completely forgotten in this aspect.

Stay safe and keep up the great work!

Y’all have managed the pandemic with transparency and grace.

Appreciate everyone’s time and effort

Thank you for the wonderful job the Academy has done this year to do its best for the kids in 
difficult circumstances.

I saved comments about teachers for this section because I want these comments to stand out. 
As far as I can tell from Student’s level of motivation, which has remained high, all of their 
teachers are going all out to make connections and show interest in individual students. We’re 
extraordinarily grateful for that. As parents, we don’t have much to do with Student’s school life, 
so I don’t know anything about their teacher relationships beyond their grades, but I do know 
that student seems satisfied, full, and happy. Sure, student gets super busy some nights and we 
don’t see them, but they have not complained at all this year about the level of work or intensity. 
Sometimes I think student puts way too much time into individual assignments, but I let it go 
because I suspect they overdo it because they want to open up to their teachers.

One name that keeps coming up is Mr. Powell’s. I don’t know what magic he’s cast, but I really 
think Student sees him as someone they really look up to and admires for his intellectual 
curiosity and willingness to engage. Mr. Powell is one of these angels we’ve never met who 
will define this Pandemic for us. His willingness to entertain Student’s philosophical rants 
about who-knows-what, and what I can only imagine to be endless patience with Student’s 
enthusiasm about politics and ideology, has been really, really important to all of us.

I understand the pandemic has made it tough for so many and we are not unusual or special, but I 
do feel, as a parent, a bit invisible - especially when it comes to unanswered/unaddressed emails.

I appreciate the great work that the DA staff has done during these difficult times.

Would prefer the graduation is also remote, because it seems unlikely for students and family 
member under 65 will be able to get vaccinated by then.

I would like to see school/teacher can provide some 1:1 guidance or counseling on how to establish 
good learning skills, such as note taking, concentration/focusing. Kids sometimes don’t want to 
take advice from parents but teachers can make a difference.

Thank you for being flexible and understanding right now. Everyone is under a lot of stress



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 17

Thank you!

Thank you - staff have done an amazing job on maintaining consistency in the midst of all the 
change!

Thank you to all the DA staff for your dedication, hardwork and attention to detail. We appreciate all 
you are doing for the students and us.

General questions: 1) I understand the goal is to return to in-person learning for the 2021-2022 
school year, if conditions allow. Will DA use, or has it used, any ventilation mitigation strategies 
to help minimize the risk of covid transmission? I’m not sure if this has already been addressed. 
2) Will SHARE or sex ed be offered this year, or is it on hold until everyone is able to safely return 
to in-person learning? Last year there wasn’t enough parent interest so the presentation was 
cancelled.

We are very happy with the DA and although this year is not what we (or anyone) expected and 
online makes the transition to a school of this rigor more difficult for some of the students, we 
wholly believe this is the best place for Student. I love being involved with the schools and want 
to help out in any way the DA needs. I have some ideas of my own as to how I may be able to 
help, especially for incoming families. Hopefully, once we are vaccinated and able to get back to 
normal school, I will have the opportunity to sit down with whomever the appropriate person is 
to discuss this. Thank you!

Thank you for all your hard work and commitment, we appreciate all of you!

I know that this year has been hard for everyone, and I do truly appreciate the work that the DA 
staff has put in to make it as successful as possible. Transitioning from homeschooling via 
online learning to the online version of DA this year has actually been a lot harder than I thought 
I would be. Even though our student had been having most all their classes online before we 
moved here, the format of sitting at the computer of seven hours a day plus homework time 
(with breaks) is so much different that other online classes we have taken. Before classes would 
be held 1 to 3 times a week, thus reducing online time, all homework would always be due on 
a consistent/predictable schedule so that you wouldn’t need to be constantly connected to your 
computer to check in if things were due/assigned.etc. You could take a day off to get outside and 
know exactly what needed to be done for the week. classes and student interaction were actually 
much better (even in classes that were mostly teacher’s lecturing).

Thank you for all you continue to do.



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 18

 

P.O. Box 9119 • Reno, Nevada 89507 
(775) 682-5800 • www.DavidsonAcademy.UNR.edu 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: Jhone Ebert, Superintendent of Public Instruction 
Brian Sandoval, President, University of Nevada, Reno 
Felicia Ortiz, President, State Board of Education 
Brenda Erdoes, Director, Legislative Counsel Bureau 

FROM:  Colleen Harsin, Director, Davidson Academy  

DATE:  2/28/21 

CC: Bob Davidson, Chairman, Davidson Academy Governing Board 
Mark Herron, Vice President & CFO, Davidson Academy Governing Board 
Brian Krolicki, Davidson Academy Governing Board Member 
Annette Whittemore, Davidson Academy Governing Board Member 
Roger Davidson, Davidson Academy Governing Board Member 
Kristen McNeill, Davidson Academy Governing Board Member 
Richard Trachok, Davidson Academy Governing Board Member 
Lauralyn Sandoval, Davidson Academy Governing Board Member 

 

SUBJECT: NRS 388C.120(5) REPORT 

Per NRS 388C.120(5), on or before March 1 of each odd-numbered year, the 
governing body of a university school for profoundly gifted pupils shall prepare 
and submit to the Superintendent of Public Instruction, the President of the 
university where the university school for profoundly gifted pupils is located, the 
State Board and the Director of the Legislative Counsel Bureau a report that 
contains information regarding the school, including, without limitation, the 
process used by the school to identify and recruit profoundly gifted pupils from 
diverse backgrounds and with diverse talents, and data assessing the success of 
the school in meeting the educational needs of its pupils. 

 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 19

 

P.O. Box 9119 • Reno, Nevada 89507 
(775) 682-5800 • www.DavidsonAcademy.unr.edu 

 
NRS 388C.120(5) Report 

March 1, 2021  

Part 1: Overview 
The Davidson Academy, Reno campus, is now in its fifteenth year of operation, and its 
thirteenth year receiving Distributive School Account (DSA) funding from the State of Nevada. 
The Davidson Academy Online campus (DAO), is in its fourth year of operation, and receives 
DSA funding in accordance with Nevada students enrolled as full time students. 

Updates that have occurred since the NRS 388C.120(5) Report issued March 1, 2019, include: 

COVID-19 Response 

Since early 2019, Academy leaders have been in contact with the appropriate state, local, and 
university officials regarding COVID-19 mitigation efforts and planning. March 13, 2020, was the 
last day of in-person instruction for Reno campus students, who then started their regularly 
scheduled spring break. As of March 23, 2020, directly following spring break, the Reno campus 
moved to a fulltime remote learning model for the remainder of the 2019-2020 school year. 
The availability of technology, experience, and support associated with the Academy already 
having a fulltime Online campus was instrumental in making the successful shift to fulltime 
remote learning for Reno campus students. Any students needing designated laptop computers 
at home for this purpose were issued laptops from the pool of laptops available to them at a 
1:1 ratio when in-person classes were in session.  

In accordance with Nevada’s Path Forward: A Framework for a Safe, Efficient, and Equitable 
Return to School Buildings, the Reno campus complied with and completed all necessary tasks 
in a timely manner. This includes the submission of a board-approved plan for the 2020-2021 
school year that encompassed access to a high quality remote learning option, as well as safe 
and appropriate in-person learning opportunities. Providing students and their families a choice 
between remote learning and a hybrid in-person learning model was a key assumption in the 
planning process for the 2020-2021 school year. Following approval by the Academy’s 
Governing Board, the completed and signed Certification for Path Forward Programs of 
Distance Education was submitted to the Nevada Department of Education. This submission 
was accompanied by the Davidson Academy Path Forward material, as it was presented to and 
approved by the Academy’s Governing Board on July 30, 2020. 

Recognizing that at-home learning in the context of a global pandemic has far reaching 
implications for students and their families across both Academy campuses, staff and faculty 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 20



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 21



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 22
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 23
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 24
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 25
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 26
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 27
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 28

Aberystwyth University
American University
Amherst College
Arizona State University (Main Campus)
Baylor University
Boston College
Boston University
Brandeis University
Brown University
California Institute of Technology
California Polytechnic State University (San Luis 
Obispo)
Carnegie Mellon University
Case Western Reserve University
Chapman University
Colorado School of Mines
Columbia University
DePaul University
Drexel University
Duke Kunshan University
Duke University
Emory University
Florida State University
Fordham University
Franklin & Marshall College
George Washington University
Georgetown University
Georgia Institute of Technology (Main Campus)
Harvard University
Harvey Mudd College
Hillsdale College
Indiana University (Bloomington)
James Madison University
Johns Hopkins University
Loyola Marymount University
Macalester College
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
McGill University

Michigan State University
Middlebury College
Montana State University
Mount Holyoke College
New York University
Northern Arizona University
Oregon Institute of Technology
Oxford College of Emory University
Pennsylvania State University (Main Campus)
Pepperdine University
Pomona College
Purdue University (Main Campus)
Reed College
Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute
Rice University
Saint Louis University
Santa Clara University
Sarah Lawrence College
Sciences Po
Scripps College
Soka University of America
Southern Methodist University
Stanford University
Stevens Institute of Technology
Stony Brook University
SUNY at Albany
Swarthmore College
Syracuse University
Temple University
Texas A&M University
The College of New Jersey
The Ohio State University (Main Campus)
The University of Alabama
The University of Edinburgh
The University of Manchester
The University of Texas at Austin
The University of Texas at Dallas
Trinity College Dublin

CLASS OF 2021 COLLEGE ADMISSIONS CYCLE 2020-2021

As of May 18, 2021:

• Total Number of Applications: 484

• Early Applications (Early Decision, Early Decision II, and Early Action): 74

• Priority (for scholarship or other purposes): 30

• Regular/Rolling: 380 

Total Number of Colleges: 143

Total Number of Acceptances: 224
Total Number of Waitlists: 80
Total Number of Denials: 168
Total Number of Deferrals from Early Applications: 22
12 Applications still pending – Students have not yet updated admission decisions

Schools to which Academy Students were accepted:



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 29

Tufts University
Union College
University College Cork
University College Dublin
University of Alabama at Birmingham
University of British Columbia
University of California (Berkeley)
University of California (Davis)
University of California (Irvine)
University of California (Los Angeles)
University of California (San Diego)
University of California (Santa Barbara)
University of Chicago
University of Colorado Boulder
University of Connecticut
University of Florida
University of Glasgow
University of Hawaii at Manoa
University of Idaho
University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign
University of Maryland (College Park)
University of Michigan
University of Nevada (Reno)
University of New Mexico (Main Campus)

University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill
University of Oklahoma
University of Oregon
University of Pennsylvania
University of Pittsburgh (Main Campus)
University of Portland
University of Puget Sound
University of Rochester
University of Southern California
University of St Andrews
University of Toronto
University of Utah
University of Virginia (Main Campus)
University of Washington (Seattle Campus)
University of Wisconsin (Madison)
University of Wyoming
Vanderbilt University
Virginia Commonwealth University
Washington University in St Louis
Wellesley College
Wesleyan University
Willamette University
Yale University

Enrollments as of 5/18 and Number of Students

Arizona State University (Main Campus)
Brown University
Carnegie Mellon University
Columbia University
Duke Kunshan University
Emory University
Fordham University
George Washington University
Georgia Institute of Technology (Main Campus)
Indiana University (Bloomington)
Pepperdine University
Pomona College
Purdue University (Main Campus)
Rice University
Sarah Lawrence College
Stanford University
The University of Alabama
The University of Edinburgh
The University of Texas at Dallas
Trinity College Dublin
University of British Columbia Science Po Dual Enrollment Program
University of California (San Diego)
University of California (Santa Barbara)
University of Chicago
University of Hawaii at Manoa
University of Nevada (Reno)
University of Oklahoma
University of Pittsburgh (Main Campus)
University of Rochester
University of Washington (Seattle Campus)
Washington University in St Louis
Yale University

*Two members of the Class of 2021 will be taking Gap Years.
**Some students remain on waitlists

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
1
4
1
1
1
1
2
1



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 30
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9
Davidson Academy Online

The Davidson Academy Governing Board Updates
May 24, 2021

 
APPLICATIONS UPDATE

For the fourth straight year our applications are up. The acceptance rate was lower this year than we have 
seen in the past. This is due to the large number of younger students who applied. The average age for 
applicants is one full year younger than 2020-21 applicants. We also saw a significant dip in the number 
of female applicants. 

Total M F U YS Average Age

Application 300 206 92 1 135 12.8

Assessed 171 128 43 0 98 12.9

Accepted 56 41 15 0 34 12.9

Enrolled 38* 30 8 0 22 12.7

*accurate as of May 11, 2021. Updated numbers will be shared during the presentation to the Governing Board. 

SUMMER SCHOOL 

 The Online campus is offering our in-house Health, Financial Literacy, and Fitness electives as full online 
courses this summer. Davidson Academy Online Summer is open to students from both campuses. There 
is one Reno campus and 21 Online campus students registered for a total of 28 courses enrollments this 
summer. The courses meet for eight weeks from June 7 - July 30. Summer school tuition is $150 per 
course. We have three staff members teaching summer school courses this year.   

DAO THE ALBUM

DAO the Album premiered on Friday, May 14. Featuring songs written and performed by DAO students, 
DAO the Album is a musical celebration of what makes Davidson Academy Online amazing. In a variety of 
styles, the album recounts the history and current runnings of DAO in a project involving many student 
singers, musicians, and composers. Featuring hits like “Oh, Social World,” “DAO English,” and “Designed 
to Be Different,” DAO the Album has something for everyone. 

SENIOR NIGHT

We hosted our annual Senior Night to honor our two 2021 graduates 
on May 14, 2021. This was an opportunity for our whole campus 
community to honor our second graduating class. The evening was 
planned by our Student Services Manager, Erica Shumaker, and 
included teacher speeches, a presentation from the Junior class, and 
comments from the Online Director. Graduates received a party in a 
box with custom made pinatas (courtesy of Krysta Pascual) to help 
them celebrate.

SCHOOL PLAY

Seven students stared in our first ever DAO school play. The play, 
featuring Beatrice A., Ida C., Lincoln F., Alex L., Liliana S., Brodie S., 
and Sriya W. was presented live on May 21st. “Objection! Disorder 
in the Court!” by Briana Dehn tells the tale of Casey who is on a 
cross-country road trip when she’s apprehended and held for trial in 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 31
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9
a town appropriately named Berserksville. Charged with an outrageous triple crime, Casey maintains her 
innocence. But as the trial begins, our level-headed defendant realizes her hapless defense attorney is an 
ineffective dolt, and the prosecution effectively uses silly, childish distractions to win the case. The parade 
of witnesses offers testimony that’s nothing more than twisted fibs, boastful self-promotion, and gabby 
gossip. The event was a great time for all. 

TUESDAY SCHEDULE

We are adding in more social opportunities, schoolwide events, and a new program, DAO Oracle (see more 
details below), next year. To help facilitate all these events we are adjusting our Tuesday schedule. The 
new Tuesday schedule will be:

Block 0 6am - 7:30am PT

Block 1 8am - 9:30am PT

Block 2 9:45am - 11:10am PT

Community Time 11:15am - 11:45am PT

Lunch 11:45am - 12:10pm PT

Block 3 12:10pm - 1:35pm PT

DAO ORACLE

As we continue to grow, we want to maintain a small school feel to DAO. We understand the value of being 
socially connected and knowing that you matter in a community. To help keep the feel of DAO small we 
are implementing a new advisory-like program called DAO Oracle next year. 

Oracle will serve as a social hub for students. Students will be placed with their similarly-aged peers and 
will be able to build communities in those groups. Oracle groups will help to introduce DAO culture to 
younger students and will serve as a positive anchor for older students. Oracle is designed to help students 
have a stronger sense of belonging.

Oracle is another place where students can learn social-emotional skills. Younger students might be 
exposed to social-emotional learning (SEL) for the first time in Oracle, while older students can integrate 
SEL into their changing sense of self.  

Students will be able to build relationships with adults who are not necessarily their teachers. Teachers who 
traditionally work wttith older students can become a larger presence for younger students. Additionally, 
teachers will be able to see students outside the context of their content areas, which is useful with 
extremely asynchronous students. Oracle advisors will be another adult on each student’s team and would 
get to know them as humans. These advisors could be another resource of letters of recommendation. 
Finally, having an additional, supportive adult might also demystify the process of asking teachers for 
help, which is a common struggle for DAO students.  

Oracle groups will be structured primarily by age. Groups would be kept small and will meet with their 
advisor twice each month for 30 minutes. Oracle meetings will be set at the beginning of the school year. 

A flexible curriculum for Oracle is being established by the Oracle team. This curriculum will grow along 
with the advisory program. Oracle does not replace counseling.

DAO SPLASH

Another new DAO event coming this summer! This event will bring high school and middle school students 
together at DAO for two days of the most amazing student-led learning around! The goal of Splash is to 
share our love of learning and teaching with a larger community! Splash will be held on June 9th and 10th. 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 32
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9
STUDENT KUDOS

National Science Bowl 

Congrats to Samuel W. and his team for finishing in first place at this year’s National Science Bowl 
for Middle School Students! 

MATHCOUNTS National Competition 

Congratulations to Marvin M. for receiving first place in the National MATHCOUNTS competition. 
This is the first time that a Davidson Academy student has won first place. It is truly exceptional! 

Mathematical Olympiad Summer Program 

Marvin M. and Linus T. qualified for the Mathematical Olympiad Program (abbreviated MOP) this 
year based on their USAMO/USAJMO scores. This 3-week intensive problem solving camp held 
at the Carnegie Mellon University is designed to help high school students prepare for math 
olympiads, especially the International Mathematical Olympiad. While the program is free to 
participants, invitations are limited to the top finishers on the USAMO. It is usually very rare for 
middle school-aged students to be invited to MOP.

USAMO/USAJMO

Congratulations to Sam G., Linus T., Alan K., Marvin M., Jasmine P., Juhi P., Justin L. and Christoper 
B. on qualifying for the USAMO/USAJMO with their AMC/AIME scores. Approximately 500 
students (out of around 300,000 from the AMC) made it to this round. Congratulations to Marvin 
M. as the USAJMO winner.

Henry Clay Warm Up For Nationals SR JR Speech Debate Tournament 

Congratulations tour first ever DAO Speech and Debate team members, Elle G., Ida C., Nathan K., AJ 
B., Gavin G., and Vlad S. for competing in the Henry Clay Warm Up For Nationals SR JR Speech 
Debate Tournament. Elle and Ida made the finals, Nathan and AJ made the semi-finals, and 
Gavin and Vlad held their own against some tough teams. Good job, Team DAO! 

National Russian Essay Contest 

Elizabeth K. received a Gold Medal in the National Russian Essay contest.

National Latin Exam

Beginning Latin

Justin L. Gold Summa cum Laude

Gabriel S. (new student for 21-22) Gold Summa cum Laude

Elizabeth K. Silver Maxima cum Laude

Intermediate Latin

Isabelle G. Gold Summa cum Laude

Sarah H. Gold Summa cum Laude

Nadia W. Silver Maxima cum Laude

Intermediate Latin Reading Comprehension

Adelaide A. (new student for 21-22) Gold Summa cum Laude



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 33
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9
Advanced Latin Poetry

Alan K. Gold Summa cum Laude

Purple Comet Math Competition

Congrats to Samuel G., Justin L., Marvin M., Linus T., Samuel W., and Chris B. (DAR) for placing 5th 
place in the Purple Comet Math Competition!

San Francisco Conservatory of Music

On April 10th, was the debut performance of “Behind the Scenes” a string quartet composed by 
Lincoln F. It was performed by the Telegraph Quartet at the San Francisco Conservatory of Music.

Davidson Academy Science Bowl Tournament

Congratulations to Sam G. and Justin L. for eking out a close win against Alan K.and Sequoia D. Sam 
said it was the first time they hadn’t gotten all the math questions. Alan and Sequoia got 3 of 
them to Justin and Sam’s 2. It was pretty exciting. They got out to 50-0 lead and Alan got back to 
50-38, but Sam and Justin were able to pick up another question to put it away. What base would 
the number 169 be equal to 400 in base 10?

F = ma Physics Exam

The results of the F = ma Physics Exam are in! We had 5 students take the test sponsored by AAPT 
(American Association of Physics Teachers). Marvin M., Justin L., Samuel W., Linus T., and 
Samuel G. It was a tough test with 25 questions and students who score 15 or higher go on 
to take the USAPhO (USA Physics Olympiad) test in April for a spot on the US Physics Team. 
Congratulations to Justin Lee for qualifying to take the USAPhO!

UNM PNM high school math contest

Congrats Laszlo Z. for winning the UNM PNM high school math contest! As a 7th grader-by-age, 
not only did Laszlo come in first place but he outscored all the 10th graders and most 11th graders 
who were competing in a division above him. Thanks to Laszlo, DAO now has a NM trophy!

 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 34
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9
Media and Outreach Updates

The Davidson Academy Governing Board Updates
May 24, 2021

 
MEDIA UPDATES/ NOTABLE WEBSITE MENTIONS

• Two Nevada students enrolled at same Reno academy named 2021 U.S. Presidential Scholars 
May 13, 2021 – CarsonNow.org (Recognizes DA students Derek Lin Chien & Priyanka Senthil, the only two 
students in Nevada to be named U.S. Presidential Scholars, and Ellie A. Huh, a semifinalist) 
https://www.carsonnow.org/story/05/13/2021/two-nevada-students-enrolled-same-reno-
academy-named-2021-us-presidential-scholars 

• Two Nevada Students Named 2021 U.S. Presidential Scholars 
May 13, 2021 - State of Nevada Department of Education (Official press release on the above  
announcement) 
https://doe.nv.gov/News__Media/Press_Releases/2021/Two_Nevada_Students_
Named_2021_U_S__Presidential_Scholars/ 

• Davidson Academy Announces Graduating Class of 2021 
May 2021 – Davidson Academy press release on the 2021 graduating class 
https://www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu/about-us/press-room/press-releases/davidson-
academy-announces-graduating-class-of-2021

• 2021 Raytheon Technologies MATHCOUNTS National Competition Winners 
May 10, 2021 – MATHCOUNTS (Online campus student Marvin Mao was honored as the Raytheon Tech 
MATHCOUNTS National Champion, the first even DA student to receive this honor) 
https://www.mathcounts.org/2021-raytheon-technologies-mathcounts-national-competition 
https://twitter.com/MATHCOUNTS/status/1391941517896556545 

• See the 2021 Best Public High Schools 
April 26, 2021 – U.S. News & World Report (The Davidson Academy was named the #3 best school in the 
U.S.!) 
https://www.usnews.com/education/best-high-schools/articles/slideshows/us-news-best-
high-schools?slide=24&utm_source=usn_tw 

• Davidson Academy student Samantha Glover was featured in a number of news stories for her 
proposed bill hopes to abolish “Period Poverty” by requiring free menstrual products at public 
high schools and middle schools in Nevada. 

• Local teen presents “Period Poverty” bill to Assembly Education Committee 
April 7, 2021 – KOLO 
https://www.kolotv.com/2021/04/07/local-teen-presents-period-poverty-bill-to-assem-
bly-education-committee/ 

• Reno teen brings heightened awareness to “Period Poverty” 
March 8, 2021 – KOLO 
https://www.kolotv.com/2021/03/09/reno-teen-brings-heightened-awareness-to-peri-
od-poverty/

• Local Group Looking To End Period Poverty 
March 7, 2021 - KTVN 
https://www.ktvn.com/story/43458255/local-group-looking-to-end-period-poverty

• 2021 Coke Scholars 
March 22, 2021 - Coca-Cola Scholars Foundation (Davidson Academy student Ellie H. was named 
a 2021 Coca-Cola Scholar! Ellie will receive a $20,000 college scholarship) 
https://www.coca-colascholarsfoundation.org/blog/our-2021-coke-scholars/ 

https://www.carsonnow.org/story/05/13/2021/two-nevada-students-enrolled-same-reno-academy-named-2021-us-presidential-scholars
https://www.carsonnow.org/story/05/13/2021/two-nevada-students-enrolled-same-reno-academy-named-2021-us-presidential-scholars
https://doe.nv.gov/News__Media/Press_Releases/2021/Two_Nevada_Students_Named_2021_U_S__Presidential_Scholars/
https://doe.nv.gov/News__Media/Press_Releases/2021/Two_Nevada_Students_Named_2021_U_S__Presidential_Scholars/
https://www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu/about-us/press-room/press-releases/davidson-academy-announces-graduating-class-of-2021
https://www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu/about-us/press-room/press-releases/davidson-academy-announces-graduating-class-of-2021
https://www.mathcounts.org/2021-raytheon-technologies-mathcounts-national-competition
https://twitter.com/MATHCOUNTS/status/1391941517896556545
https://www.usnews.com/education/best-high-schools/articles/slideshows/us-news-best-high-schools?slide=24&utm_source=usn_tw
https://www.usnews.com/education/best-high-schools/articles/slideshows/us-news-best-high-schools?slide=24&utm_source=usn_tw
https://www.kolotv.com/2021/04/07/local-teen-presents-period-poverty-bill-to-assembly-education-committee/
https://www.kolotv.com/2021/04/07/local-teen-presents-period-poverty-bill-to-assembly-education-committee/
https://www.kolotv.com/2021/03/09/reno-teen-brings-heightened-awareness-to-period-poverty/
https://www.kolotv.com/2021/03/09/reno-teen-brings-heightened-awareness-to-period-poverty/
https://www.ktvn.com/story/43458255/local-group-looking-to-end-period-poverty
https://www.coca-colascholarsfoundation.org/blog/our-2021-coke-scholars/


Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 35
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9
• Reno Students Win National Science Bowl® Regional Competition, Secure Spot in National Finals 

March 1, 2021 – U.S. Department of Energy (A team of DA middle school students won regional 
competition for 2021 National Science Bowl to compete in the NSB National Finals) 
https://science.osti.gov/-/media/wdts/nsb/pdf/2021-Media-Releases-Regional-Winners/The-
Davidson-Academy-of-Nevada-Reno-Nevada.pdf

• Why a School for Gifted Students Adopted Todoist as Its Homework Planner 
February 25, 2021 – Todoist (Features Davidson Academy’s online campus, spotlighting how the 
DA is effectively managing communication through Todoist) 
https://blog.doist.com/davidson-academy-homework-planner-todoist/

WEBSITE METRICS

(Feb 1, 2021 – May 12, 2021)

Key Takeaways

• Total website visits are up 5.5% year-over-year even with a smaller application window, 
primarily due to organic search (such as Google) and direct visits to website. 

• Traffic coming from search engines (i.e. Google) is up 37.7%. 

• The highest traffic day this period was March 10, with a 117% increase over the same day in 2020 
(also the highest traffic day on the Davidson Academy site in at least six years). 

• Traffic to the Admissions pages is up 26% year-over-year. Average time on these pages is up 
9.37%.

      

https://science.osti.gov/-/media/wdts/nsb/pdf/2021-Media-Releases-Regional-Winners/The-Davidson-Academy-of-Nevada-Reno-Nevada.pdf
https://science.osti.gov/-/media/wdts/nsb/pdf/2021-Media-Releases-Regional-Winners/The-Davidson-Academy-of-Nevada-Reno-Nevada.pdf
https://blog.doist.com/davidson-academy-homework-planner-todoist/


Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 36
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9
Organic search: search engines such as Google

Direct: directly visiting our website 

Referral: Arriving on our website via a link from another website, such as NAGC or a news article

Social: Social Media such as Facebook and Twitter

 

 

 

   

ONGOING OUTREACH 

Virtual Open House - Davidson Academy Reno Campus

• March 2, 2021

Digital Learning Annual Conference (DLAC)

• Dr. Stacy Hawthorne, Dr. Jessica Potts, & Tracy Sangster from Davidson Academy online campus 
to present at 2021 DLAC Program June 14-16

Davidson Academy eNewsletter – distributed every other month to 6,000 recipients

• April 2021

• February 2021



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 37
Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4

Tab 5
Tab 6

Tab 7
Tab 8

Tab 9
eNews-Update – Often prominently features the Davidson Academy; distributed every other month to 
more than 15,00 recipients

• April 2021

Social Media

• Instagram - https://www.instagram.com/thedavidsonacademy/

• Facebook - https://www.facebook.com/TheDavidsonAcademy/

• Twitter - https://twitter.com/TheDavidsonAcad

• YouTube - https://www.youtube.com/user/DavidsonAcademyNV

https://www.instagram.com/thedavidsonacademy/
https://www.facebook.com/TheDavidsonAcademy/
https://twitter.com/TheDavidsonAcad
https://www.youtube.com/user/DavidsonAcademyNV


Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 38

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

11444 W. Olympic Blvd. |  11th Floor  |  Los Angeles  |  California  |  90064  |  T / 310.566.1900  |  F / 310.566.1901  |  www.hcvt.com 
 

April 14, 2021 
 
 
Governing Board of Directors 
c/o Mr. Bob Davidson 
The Davidson Academy of Nevada 
1670 N. Virginia Street, 2nd Floor 
Reno, Nevada 89503  
 
 Re: Year-End Financial Statements 
 
 
Governing Board of Directors: 
 
We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide for The Davidson Academy of 
Nevada (the School), a division of the Davidson Institute for Talent Development, for the year ending June 30, 
2021. This letter will set forth the substance, procedures and limitations of our engagement and, upon your signature 
signifying the School’s acceptance of and agreement to its contents, shall be referred to as “the Engagement 
Agreement.” 
 
AUDIT 
 
Holthouse Carlin & Van Trigt LLP (HCVT) will audit the School’s financial statements of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the School as 
of and for the year ending June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements.  
 
Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States provide for certain required supplementary 
information (RSI), such as management’s decision and analysis (MD&A), to accompany the School’s basic 
financial statements. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the School’s RSI. 
These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement 
and presentation, which management is responsible for affirming to us in its representation letter. Unless we 
encounter problems with the presentation of the RSI or with procedures relating to it, we will disclaim an opinion 
on it. The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain 
limited procedures, but will not be subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial 
statements, and our auditor's report will not provide an opinion or any assurance on the: 
 

• Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

Also, the following supplementary financial information required by the Government Accounting Standards Board, 
will be subjected to auditing procedures in our audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and our 
auditor's report will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole: 

 
• Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

 
AUDIT OBJECTIVES 
 
The objective of our audit is the expression of an opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly 
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP) 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 39

Governing Board of Directors 
The Davidson Academy of Nevada 
April 14, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 
and to report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the fourth paragraph when considered 
in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards for financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of your 
accounting records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion. We will 
issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the School’s financial statements. Our report will be 
addressed to the board of directors of the School. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will 
be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or add an emphasis-
of-matter or other-matter paragraph. If our opinion on the financial statements is other than unmodified, we will 
discuss the reasons with management in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are 
unable to form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or issue reports, or we may 
withdraw from this engagement. 
 
We will also provide a report (which does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial 
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government 
Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will include a paragraph 
that states that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and 
compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control on compliance and (2) the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that 
the report is not suitable for any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that the School is subject to 
an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to 
management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing 
standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the 
relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements. 
 
AUDIT PROCEDURES—GENERAL 
 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; therefore, our audit will involve professional judgment about the number of transactions to be 
examined and the areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent 
financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are 
attributable to the School or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the School. Because the 
determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable 
assurance of detecting abuse. 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and 
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements 
may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with 
U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not 
designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management 
of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We 
will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that 
come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention. Our 
responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for 
which we are not engaged as auditors. 
 
Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts 
and direct confirmation of receivables and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 40

Governing Board of Directors 
The Davidson Academy of Nevada 
April 14, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 
funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We may also request written representations from the 
School’s attorneys as part of the engagement regarding pending or threatened litigation or other matters, and the 
attorneys may bill the School for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain 
written representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing 
standards. 
 
During the course of our engagement, we will request information and explanations from management regarding 
School operations, internal controls, future plans, specific transactions, and accounting systems and procedures. 
At the conclusion of our engagement, we will require, as a precondition to the issuance of our report, that 
management provide certain representations in a written representation letter (“management representation 
letter”). The procedures we will perform in our engagement and the conclusions we reach as a basis for our report 
will rely and be dependent upon the written and oral representations that we receive from management, including 
the management representation letter. In view of the foregoing, the School agrees to release our firm and its 
personnel from any liability and costs relating to our services under this letter arising from false or misleading 
representations made to us by any member of the School’s management, whether in the management 
representation letter or otherwise.  
 
AUDIT PROCEDURES—INTERNAL CONTROL 
 
Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the School and its environment, including internal control, 
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, 
and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain 
controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial 
statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance 
matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in 
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be 
expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will communicate to 
management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be 
communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards. 
 
AUDIT PROCEDURES—COMPLIANCE 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of the School’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall 
compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government 
Auditing Standards. 
 
OTHER SERVICES  
 
We will prepare the financial statements of the School and related notes of the School in conformity with U.S. 
GAAP based on information provided by you and in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 34 as required by the Nevada State Department of Education.  
 
These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will 
not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 
 
We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited 
to the financial statement preparation and related notes services previously defined. We, in our sole professional 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 41

Governing Board of Directors 
The Davidson Academy of Nevada 
April 14, 2021 
Page 4 
 
 
judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedures or take any action that could be construed as 
assuming management responsibilities.  
 
MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Management is responsible for (1) designing, implementing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due 
to fraud or error, including monitoring ongoing activities and for helping to ensure that appropriate goals and 
objectives are met; (2) following laws and regulations; and (3) ensuring that management is reliable and financial 
information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed 
to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also 
responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles; for the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements and all accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles; and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements. 
 
Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the 
accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all 
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access 
to persons within the organization from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 
 
Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming 
to us in the representation letter (as described above) that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements 
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and 
for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the organization involving (1) management, 
(2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations 
of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the School received in communications from employees, former employees, 
grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the School 
complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate 
steps to remedy fraud, noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse 
that we report. 
 
You are required to disclose the date through which subsequent events have been evaluated and whether that 
date is the date the financial statements were issued or were available to be issued. You will not date the 
subsequent event note earlier than the date of the management representation letter and the date of the 
independent auditor’s report. 
 
You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged to report 
on, in conformity with U.S. GAAP. You agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any 
document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree 
to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes 
our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) 
you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe 
the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the 
methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have 
changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or 
interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information. 
 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 42

Governing Board of Directors 
The Davidson Academy of Nevada 
April 14, 2021 
Page 5 
 
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial 
audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the 
Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address 
significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance 
audits, or other engagements or studies. The School is also responsible for providing management’s views on our 
current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions for the report, and 
for the timing and format for providing that information. 
 
You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements, related notes, and any 
other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter 
our assistance with the preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have evaluated the 
adequacy of our services and have reviewed and approved the results of the services, the financial statements, 
and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to assume 
all management responsibilities for the financial statement preparation services, and any other nonattest services 
we provide; you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designated an individual, preferably from senior 
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; 
and accept responsibility for them. 
 
With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements 
published electronically on the School's website, management understands that electronic sites are a means to 
distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to 
consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document. 
 
Finally, you agree to execute and to provide us in a timely fashion, prior to the issuance of our report, with the 
management representation letter described above, confirming the foregoing and your understanding that it is 
HCVT’s intention to rely upon such representations in performing services hereunder. 
 
FILE RETENTION POLICY 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of HCVT and constitutes confidential information. 
However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will be made 
available upon request and in a timely manner to the applicable regulator or its designee, a federal agency 
providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review 
of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such 
request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of HCVT 
personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the 
aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained 
therein to others, including other governmental agencies.  
 
We will maintain copies of financial statements and miscellaneous reports prepared by our firm, along with 
supporting workpapers, for approximately seven years after the report release date. Once the seven-year time 
period has run, we reserve the right to destroy our files relating to those financial statement years without any 
further notice to you. Please contact us if you have any questions about this policy.  
 
DOCUMENT SUBPOENAS AND TESTIMONY 
 
Our fees for this engagement do not cover our charges for any subpoena or other discovery request we receive 
for documents, information or testimony (in court, before an arbitrator or arbitration panel, or in deposition) related 
to this engagement, in proceedings to which we are not a party. We will bill the School separately for our time and 
expenses incurred in connection with responding to any such requests and testifying in any such proceedings, 
including reasonable attorney's fees we may incur, and including, without limitation, any negotiations, “meet and 
confer” process or motion practice concerning the nature and scope of any such subpoena, or as to other 
procedural and/or substantive issues concerning such document requests or testimony. Should you or your 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 43

Governing Board of Directors 
The Davidson Academy of Nevada 
April 14, 2021 
Page 6 
 
 
counsel in such proceedings have any objection to the nature or scope of any such subpoena for our workpapers 
and records, you agree that it shall be your or your counsel’s responsibility in the first instance to present such 
objections and/or to file an appropriate motion to contest or to seek to limit the scope of such subpoena. HCVT will 
cooperate with any such efforts consistent with the legal requirements imposed upon HCVT by the subpoena 
including, without limitation, making such workpapers and records available to you and/or your counsel for 
inspection prior to their production. However, because the workpapers for this engagement are the property of 
HCVT, absent a specific Court order concerning any objection or motion to limit the scope of production, or a 
written agreement by the School with the party issuing the subpoena to which we have agreed, we reserve the 
right to make the final decision as to which documents from our workpapers and records shall be produced in 
response to such a subpoena.  
 
In addition, HCVT may be requested to produce or to give access to workpapers for this engagement in connection 
with due diligence engagements and for other purposes, including providing workpapers to successor auditors, 
potential purchasers, lenders or investors and their representatives upon the School’s request. In the event such 
a request is made, the School further agrees to reimburse HCVT at standard billing rates for its professional time 
and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees we may incur (if applicable), incurred in responding to such 
requests and in securing usual and customary authorizations from the School and agreements from third parties 
as to the confidentiality of and limitations as to the use of and reliance upon such workpapers.  
 
ENGAGEMENT ADMINISTRATION, FEES AND OTHER 
 
We may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving your 
account. We may share confidential information about you with these service providers, but remain committed to 
maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we maintain internal policies, 
procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, we will secure 
confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and we will 
take reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the 
unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. In the event that we are unable to secure an 
appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your 
confidential information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work 
provided by any such third-party service providers.  
 
We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts and grant receivable and other confirmations 
and schedules we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing. A list of information we expect 
to need for our audit (and related dates that the information will be provided to us) will be provided to management. 
We will schedule the engagement based in part on deadlines, working conditions, and the availability of your key 
personnel. We will plan the engagement based on the assumption that your personnel will cooperate and provide 
assistance by performing tasks such as preparing requested schedules, retrieving supporting documents, and 
preparing confirmations. If, for whatever reason, your personnel are unavailable to provide the necessary 
assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase the work we have to do to complete the engagement 
within the established deadlines, resulting in an increase in fees over our original fee estimate. 
 
I am the engagement partner and am responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the report or 
authorizing another individual to sign it. Our engagement ends on delivery of our audit report. We will provide an 
electronic copy of the report to you; however, management is responsible for distribution of the report and the 
financial statements. Any follow-up services that might be required will be a separate, new Engagement Agreement. 
The terms and conditions of that new engagement will be governed by a new specific Engagement Agreement for 
that service.  
 
Our fees for the audit of the financial statements will be $28,250, plus travel and other out-of-pocket expenses. 
Invoices will be rendered monthly and are payable upon presentation. These fees are based on the complexity of 
the issues and the time required of individuals who will be performing the services.  
 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 44

Governing Board of Directors 
The Davidson Academy of Nevada 
April 14, 2021 
Page 7 
 
 
The fee estimate quoted in this letter is contingent on your accounting personnel providing us with accounting 
system narratives and other information in connection with the risk assessment and planning procedures, final trial 
balance with minimal post-closing adjustments, general ledger, supporting schedules and reconciliations, access 
to closing adjusting journal entries and other adjusting journal entries we may select, and other documents and 
information that were agreed to prior to commencement of fieldwork (defined as the “audit pack”). Additionally, 
permanent file information including, but not limited to, contracts, loan agreements, notes payable, mortgages 
payable, School agreements, lease agreements, etc. should be provided to us as soon as possible. The fee 
estimate is also based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected 
circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If your accounting personnel are unable to provide us with 
the above, then we will contact you immediately to discuss the effect on meeting reporting requirements and to 
discuss revisions to the fee estimate. 
 
Unexpected circumstances encountered during the performance of these services that warrant additional time or 
expense could cause us to be unable to complete the audit within the above estimates. This includes additional 
time necessary to resolve unexpected audit or accounting issues, auditing procedures with respect to post-closing 
adjustments and/or inefficiencies related to not receiving the above requested information on a timely basis. We 
will endeavor to notify you of any such circumstances as they are assessed, and any additional time incurred will 
be billed at our standard hourly rates. 
 
HCVT is owned by professionals who hold CPA licenses as well as by professionals who are not licensed CPAs. 
Depending on the nature of the services we provide, non-CPA owners may be involved in providing services to 
you now or in the future. 
 
In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 30 days or more overdue 
and will not be resumed until your account is paid in full. In addition, an interest charge based on an annual rate 
of 10 percent may be assessed on all amounts 30 days or more past due. If we elect to terminate our services for 
nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed even if we have not issued our report. You 
will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures 
through the date of termination. 
 
We may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, utilize personnel outside the USA in serving your 
account under the supervision of your HCVT engagement partner and other HCVT personnel working domestically. 
We formed HCVT International, LLC to employ personnel outside the USA to assist us with audit services.    
 
EMPLOYMENT OF HCVT OR SCHOOL PERSONNEL 
 
HCVT invests a great deal of time and effort in ensuring that we have top quality and appropriately trained 
professionals to service our clients. Likewise, our clients have made a similar investment in their personnel. When 
a client contacts us about its desire to hire one of our professionals, we recognize and appreciate the client’s 
confidence in our engagement team members. However, when we lose a valued member of our engagement 
team, we incur significant expenses in hiring and training his or her replacement. Also, in some situations, a client’s 
employment of an engagement team member may raise independence issues. Accordingly, during the term of this 
engagement and for a period of one (1) year after the services are completed, HCVT and the School each agree 
not to solicit, directly or indirectly, or to hire, any of the other party’s personnel participating in the performance of 
this engagement without first obtaining the express prior written consent of the other party. The parties agree that 
ascertaining the extent of injury, cost or damage in the event of non-compliance would be difficult or impossible to 
calculate; accordingly, the parties agree that if either party fails to comply with the foregoing prior written consent 
requirement before soliciting, directly or indirectly, or hiring, any of the other party’s personnel, and provided 
that any such personnel are actually hired, the violating party will pay the other party a fee equal to 30% of any 
such hired person’s annual salary in effect at the time of the hiring as a reasonable estimate of the costs to such 
party of the costs of hiring and training replacement personnel. 
 
  



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 45

Governing Board of Directors 
The Davidson Academy of Nevada 
April 14, 2021 
Page 8 
 
 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION – PROFESSIONAL FEES  
 
If a dispute arises out of or relates to HCVT’s professional fees, and if the dispute cannot be settled through 
negotiation, the parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the dispute by mediation administered by either 
JAMS or the American Arbitration Association under its Dispute Resolution Rules for Professional Accounting and 
Related Services Disputes before resorting to litigation, or some other dispute resolution procedure before a 
different tribunal if both of us so agree. The parties shall share equally in the administrative costs assessed by the 
tribunal for any such mediation process and shall otherwise bear their own attorney’s fees and costs so incurred. 
 
EXTERNAL ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION AUTHORIZATION   
 
HCVT may send documents or other information concerning this engagement using external electronic 
communication (“EC”) (via the internet or other network). The School understands that EC is not an absolutely 
secure method of communication. The School’s execution of this Engagement Agreement through its authorized 
representative(s) will serve to acknowledge and accept the risk and authorize HCVT to use EC means to 
communicate with the School, its personnel or others necessary to effectively perform services for School. If there 
are certain documents or information with respect to which the School wishes to maintain absolute confidentiality, 
the School must advise HCVT in writing not to transmit such documents or information via EC and HCVT will 
thereafter comply with the School’s request.  
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT   
 
This Engagement Agreement represents our entire agreement, which is effective on the date you execute it. No 
other agreement, statement or promise made on or before the date of this Engagement Agreement will be binding 
on the parties. This original Engagement Agreement has been executed on behalf of HCVT. You should sign and 
retain it for your file, and sign and return a copy to HCVT. By counter-signing in the space provided below and 
returning to HCVT a copy of this Engagement Agreement, the School’s representative confirms that she or he has 
read, understands and agrees to the terms of this Engagement Agreement and that she or he is authorized to 
execute this Engagement Agreement on the School’s behalf to confirm the engagement of HCVT to perform the 
referenced services, subject to the terms and conditions set forth above.  
 
DATA PRIVACY 
  
HCVT will not collect, retain, use, sell, or otherwise disclose Personal Information for any purpose other than for 
the specific purpose of performing the services specified in this engagement or as otherwise required by law.  
“Personal Information” means information that: (i) HCVT processes on behalf of the School; and (ii) identifies, 
relates to, describes, is reasonably capable of being associated with, or could reasonably be linked, directly or 
indirectly, with a particular individual or household. 
 
EXECUTION OF ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT   
 
If this Engagement Agreement was executed on behalf of a corporate or partnership entity, the representative(s) 
of such corporate or partnership entity represent(s) that he/she/they is/are a duly appointed officer, partner, 
shareholder or manager of such corporation or partnership, that the corporation or partnership is active and in 
good standing and that he/she/they possessed actual authority to enter into this engagement agreement with 
HCVT on behalf of such corporate or partnership entity.  
 
This Engagement Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts each of which shall be deemed an 
original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signed signature pages may be 
transmitted by facsimile, electronically scanned or electronically signed, and any such signature shall have the 
same legal effect as the original. 
 
You may request that we perform additional services not addressed in this Engagement Agreement. If this occurs, 
we will communicate with you concerning the scope of the additional services and the estimated fees. We may 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 46

Governing Board of Directors 
The Davidson Academy of Nevada 
April 14, 2021 
Page 9 
 
 
also require a separate or supplemental Engagement Agreement covering the additional services. In the absence 
of any other written communication from us documenting such additional services, our services will continue to be 
governed by the terms of this Engagement Agreement. 
 
Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review 
report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and letters of comment received during 
the period of the contract. A copy of our most recent peer review report accompanies this letter.  
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this agreement accurately summarizes the 
significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of 
our engagement as described herein, please sign below and return an executed Engagement Agreement to us. 

 
Very truly yours, 
 
HOLTHOUSE CARLIN & VAN TRIGT LLP 

 
Morris Zlotowitz 
 
MZ/cb 

 
cc:  Mark Herron 
 Karin Dixson 
 Kimberly Hastings 
 
 
 
ENGAGEMENT TERMS ACCEPTED: 
        
 
 
 
             
Signature of Authorized Officer      Date 
 
 
          
Name and Title 
 
 



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 47

 Minutes of the Required Public Hearing on
The Davidson Academy 2021-2022 Fiscal Year Budget

May 10, 2021
 
The Required Public Hearing on the Davidson Academy Tentative 2021-2022 Fiscal Year Budget was called 
to order at 2:00 p.m. by Meeting Chair, Mark Herron. Due to the current State of Emergency declared by 
the Governor because of the Covid-19 virus, and more specifically the Governor’s Directive 006, Section 1, 
this public hearing was held via videoconference.

A. PUBLIC COMMENTS

No members of the public were present. No public comments were received via email prior to or during 
the hearing.

B. REQUIRED PUBLIC HEARING ON THE DAVIDSON ACADEMY’S 2020-21 FISCAL BUDGET

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Davidson Academy and member of the Academy’s 
Governing Board, Mark Herron, began this meeting by stating that this was a public hearing on the 
Tentative Budget for the Davidson Academy for the 2021-2022 fiscal year commencing on July 1, 2021, and 
was being held pursuant to regulations of the Nevada State Board of Education contained in the Nevada 
Administrative Code, section 387.720.

Mr. Herron introduced himself for the record, along with Karin Dixson, CPA, Controller of the Davidson 
Academy, Stacy Hawthorne, Director of the Davidson Academy Online Campus, Dee Carey, Director of 
Human Resources, Ben Brown, Online Technology Manager and Holly Lorge’, Governing Board Clerk, who 
were present. He confirmed that this tentative budget was submitted to the State Board of Education 
by April 15, 2021 as required. He confirmed that on Monday, May 24, 2021, the Governing Board of the 
Davidson Academy will meet to, among other things, review, discuss and adopt the budget for the 2021-
2022 fiscal year. He further confirmed that public comment would be taken at this hearing and the 
Board would be provided with a summary of the comments received. This hearing was properly noticed, 
with notices posted online to the Davidson Academy website and to Notice.NV.gov no later than 9 a.m. 
Wednesday, May 5, 2021, and by publishing a notice in the Reno-Gazette Journal newspaper on Friday, 
April 30, 2021. Physical posting has been suspended per Directive 006, Section 3. A Certificate of Posting 
and Proof of Publication were completed.

A copy of the 2021-2022 Tentative Budget for the 2021-2022 fiscal year was made available during the 
hearing. Mark Herron confirmed that the Tentative Budget for 2021-2022 was submitted to the Nevada 
Department of Education and the Clerk of the Davidson Academy Governing Board on April 15, 2021. 
He then provided an overview of the Tentative Budget. The Tentative Budget was prepared on the form 
prescribed by the Nevada Department of Taxation and copies are available upon request. The Tentative 
Budget shown reflected Total Revenue of $6,299,900 with estimated DSA revenue of $1,414,400 and 
$3,612,000 in contributions from the Davidsons. The budgetary form requires that Expenditures be 
reported by type. Expenditures on the Tentative Budget were estimated to be $6,516,720 for 2021-2022.

A supplementary summary of revenues and expenditures, including graphs, is available upon request. 
This summary provides additional detail as to the breakdown of revenue and expenditures between the 
Reno and Online Academy.

The full budget as submitted to the Nevada Department of Education may be viewed at  
https://bit.ly/3tRqd5I.

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS

No members of the public were present.

https://bit.ly/3tRqd5I


Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 48

D. ADJOURNMENT

The Required Public Hearing on the Davidson Academy Budget Fiscal Year 2021-2022 adjourned at 2:06 
p.m.

Respectfully submitted by Holly Lorge’, Clerk of the Board





Summary of 
Tentative 
Budget

Grand Total Online Reno

Revenue Sources

Davidson Donations 3,612,000 1,470,000 2,142,000 

Tuition Revenue 1,118,500 1,118,500 

DSA Revenue 1,414,400 131,250 1,283,150 

Activities Revenue 130,000 130,000 

Othe Donations 25,000 25,000 

Total Revenue 6,299,900 2,719,750 3,580,150 

Expenditure by Type

Wages 3,825,370 1,585,150 2,240,220 

Taxes/Benefits 1,270,730 488,475 782,255 

Professional Services 580,890 407,955 172,935 

Building/Parking 216,690 - 216,690 

Purchased Services 296,720 96,045 200,675 

IT & Supplies 266,205 131,715 134,490 

Capital & Depreciation 45,590 - 45,590 

Dues & Fees 14,525 9,355 5,170 

Total Expenditures 6,516,720 2,718,695 3,798,025 

Less non-cash items (247,440) (2,840) (244,600)

Change in Net Assets 30,620 3,895 26,725 

Grand Total Online Reno

Expenditure by Function

Classroom 3,620,495 1,719,155 1,901,340 

Support 2,818,815 999,540 1,819,275 

Transportation 77,410 77,410 

6,516,720 2,718,695 3,798,025  



Revenue 
Sources

Davidson Donations
57%

Tuition Revenue
18%

DSA Revenue
23% Activities Revenue

2% Othe Donations
0%

REVENUE SOURCES



By Type By Function

Expenditures

Wages
59%

Taxes/Benefi
ts

19%

Professional 
Services

9%
Building/Parking

3%
Purchased 

Services
5%

IT & Supplies
4%

Capital & 
Depreciation

1%

Classroom
56%

Support
43%

Transportation
1%



PROPOSED FINAL Budget
2021/2022

Davidson Academy

Reno Online TOTAL Reno Online TOTAL Reno Online TOTAL
145 80 225 155 65 220 -10 15 5

Davidson Contributions 2,142,000    1,470,000    3,612,000    1,970,000  1,655,000    3,625,000  172,000       (185,000)    (13,000)      
Tuition -                1,118,500    1,118,500    -              650,000       650,000      -                468,500      468,500      

State of Nevada 1,283,150    131,250       1,414,400    1,220,000  -                1,220,000  63,150         131,250      194,400      
Other Activities 155,000       -                155,000       140,000      -                140,000      15,000         -              15,000        

TOTAL  REVENUE 3,580,150    2,719,750    6,299,900    3,330,000  2,305,000    5,635,000  250,150       414,750     664,900     

Classroom 1,901,340    1,719,155    3,620,495    1,776,825  1,317,320    3,094,145  124,515       401,835      526,350      
Guidance & College Advising 371,340       199,415       570,755       344,600      126,620       471,220      26,740         72,795        99,535        

Assessment/Curriculum/IT 269,080       189,300       458,380       289,960      303,860       593,820      (20,880)        (114,560)    (135,440)    
Legal/Audit/Liability Insur. 47,390         43,650         91,040         84,040        6,500            90,540        (36,650)        37,150        500             

Admin & Records 444,925       290,410       735,335       318,660      243,005       561,665      126,265       47,405        173,670      
IT/PR/Fiscal/HR 248,830       267,045       515,875       196,210      295,005       491,215      52,620         (27,960)      24,660        

Building/Security/Safety 410,995       -                410,995       399,600      -                399,600      11,395         -              11,395        
Shuttle &  Transport 77,410         -                77,410         104,560      -                104,560      (27,150)        -              (27,150)      

Indirect 26,715         9,720            36,435         49,545        6,485            56,030        (22,830)        3,235          (19,595)      
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,798,025    2,718,695    6,516,720    3,564,000  2,298,795    5,862,795  234,025       419,900     653,925     

Less Non-Cash Items:
Prepaid Rent 196,170       -                196,170       196,170      -                196,170      -                -              -              
Depreciation 48,430         2,840            51,270         45,590        -                45,590        2,840            2,840          5,680          

NET FUND BALANCE 26,725         3,895            30,620         7,760          6,205            13,965        18,965         (2,310)         16,655        

PROPOSED 2021/2022 FINAL APPROVED 2020/2021 VARIANCE

Presented May 13, 2019



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 49



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 50



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 51



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 52



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 53



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 54



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 55



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 56



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 57



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 58



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 59



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 60



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 61



Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

BoardBook page 62


	Agenda
	DAR Start
	Memorandom
	College Admission
	DAO Start
	Media Outreach
	Holthouse
	Budget
	State Of Nevada

	Tab 1: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 

	Button 2: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 

	Button 3: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 

	Button 4: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 

	Button 5: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 

	Button 6: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 

	Button 7: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 

	Button 8: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 

	Button 9: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 



